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Your Directors submit their report on the consolidated entity (referred to hereafter as the Group) consisting of 
Sipa Resources Limited and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended 30 June 2014. 

DIRECTORS 

The names and details of the Company’s directors in office during the financial year and up to the date of this 
report are as follows.  Directors were in office for this entire period unless otherwise stated. 

NAMES, QUALIFICATIONS, EXPERIENCE AND SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

Peter Ian Blair Pearce, ACSM F AusIMM – Independent Non-Executive Director (Chairman) 

Mr Pearce is a mining engineer with some 35 years of experience in gold and base metals project evaluation, 
development and management.  In addition to Chairman of the Board, Mr Pearce is Chairman of the Nomination 
and Compensation Committee.  During the past three years Mr Pearce has not been a director of any other listed 
company. 

Lynda Margaret Daley, BSc (Hons) GAICD, MAusIMM, MSEG, (Exploration Manager 5 June 2014 to 
24 July 2014, Managing Director since 24 July 2014) 

Ms Daley is a geologist with over 25 years experience in the mineral exploration industry, including most 
recently as Director – Exploration Australia for Newmont Asia Pacific. During her nine year tenure with 
Newmont, Lynda was responsible for the strategic planning management and oversight of all Newmont’s 
generative exploration projects, as well as business development, in the Asia Pacific region.  Prior to her roles at 
Newmont, Lynda has worked for a number of mining and exploration companies including executive director of 
Summit Resources Ltd, and for Newmont Pty Ltd at the Telfer Gold Mine and Worsely Alumina at the 
Boddington gold mine at its commencement. Prior to her appointment as Managing Director, Lynda was 
employed as the exploration manager during the period from 5 June 2014 to 30 June 2014. Lynda was appointed 
to Managing Director subsequent to the period end on 24 July 2014. 
 
Ms Daley has been a member of the Continuous Disclosure Committee since 24 July 2014.  During the past 
three years Ms Daley has not been a director of any other listed company. 

Michael Glen Doepel, MSc DIC M AusIMM - Non-Executive Director (Appointed 24 July 2014, Resigned 
12 September 2014), Managing Director, Executive Director (Retired from position 24 July 2014) 

Mr Doepel is a West Australian geologist with over thirty years involvement in mineral exploration.  Mr Doepel 
is a member of the Continuous Disclosure Committee.  During the past three years Mr Doepel has not been a 
director of any other listed company. 
 
Subsequent to the period end, on 24 July 2014, Mr Doepel retired from the position of Managing Director.  On 
that same date Mr Doepel was appointed a Non-Executive Director of the Company.  On 12 September 2014, 
Mr Doepel resigned from the position of Non-Executive Director.  

Dalton Leslie Gooding, B.BUS, FCA – Independent Non-Executive Director  

Mr Gooding is a chartered accountant with over 30 years experience within the corporate and business sector 
including 14 years as a partner of Ernst & Young before starting his own practice of Gooding Partners (formerly 
Gooding Pervan) in 1998. Mr Gooding is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.  During the past three years 
Mr. Gooding has also served as a director of the following other listed companies: 

• Avita Medical Limited (director since November 2002 – 1 July 2014) 

• Anatolia Energy Limited (director since November 2002 – 1 April 2011) 

• Katana Capital Limited (director since November 2005) 

• Brierty Limited (director since October 2007) 

David John Williams, LL.B, FAICD – Independent Non-Executive Director 

Mr Williams is a commercial lawyer with 30 years experience advising in resources, corporate and business 
matters. He is the commercial counsel of the West Perth law practice of Williams & Hughes Pty Ltd.  Mr 
Williams is a member of the Audit Committee.  During the past three years Mr. Williams has not served as a 
director for any other listed companies. 
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Karen Lesley Field, B Ec – Independent Non-Executive Director  

Mrs Field has over three decades experience in the mining industry and has held executive roles in a variety of 
industry sectors in Australia and South America.  Mrs Field is the Chair of the Continuous Disclosure 
Committee and a member of the Nomination and Compensation Committee.  During the past three years Mrs 
Field has also served as a director of the following other listed companies: 

• Aurizon Holdings Limited (director from 19 April 2012) 

• Mining and Civil Australia Limited (director from 11 June 2011 – 30 April 2012) 

COMPANY SECRETARY 

The company secretary is Ms Tara Robson, B.A. Accounting.  Ms Robson was appointed company secretary on 
8 April 2004.  Before joining Sipa Resources Limited, she served as consultant to the Company.  She has held a 
similar role with listed entities since 1997.  Prior to that Ms Robson was a senior audit manager with a major 
accounting practice. 

INTERESTS IN THE SHARES AND OPTIONS OF THE COMPANY 

As at the date of this report, the interests of the directors in the shares and options of Sipa Resources Limited 
were: 

Directors Fully Paid 
Ordinary Shares 

Share Options 
 

Options Issued  
During The Year 

P I B Pearce 1,742,082 435,521 435,521 
L M Daley 300,000 300,000 300,000 
D L Gooding 258,690 64,673 64,673 
D J Williams 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 
K L Field 750,000 750,000 750,000 

All of the Options issued during the year were pursuant to the non-renounceable entitlement offer dated 24 
March 2014 and were not remuneration options. 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The principal activities of the companies in the Group were the acquisition and exploration of mineral tenements 
in Australia and Uganda.   

DIVIDENDS 

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2014 and 
the directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of the financial year. 

REVIEW AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The Company continued with exploration activities on its mineral tenements within Australia.  The consolidated 
entity’s loss after tax for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 was $4,504,830 (2013:  Loss $5,717,678). 

         Consolidated 
 
Continuing Operations 

2014 
$ 

2013 
$ 

Revenue 120,829 356,780 
Other income 8,107 - 
Exploration expenditure (1,937,525) (3,998,588) 
Administrative expenses (1,662,500) (1,502,134) 
Share of net loss of jointly controlled entity (1,033,741) (569,736) 
Impairment loss on available for sale assets - (4,000) 

Net loss for the year (4,504,830) (5,717,678) 

 

At 30 June 2014 the Groups cash and cash equivalents balance was $4,013,814 and there was no debt.   
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN STATE OF AFFAIRS 

During the financial year there was no significant change in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity other 
than as follows: 

On 24 March 2014 the Company lodged a prospectus to undertake a non-renounceable entitlement issue to 
eligible shareholders of up to approximately 160,521,671 fully paid ordinary shares (Shares) at an issue price 
of $0.035 per Share on the basis of 1 Share for every 3 Shares held on the record date of 2 April 2014 and 
160,521,671 options (Options) on the basis of 1 free attaching Option for every Share issued with each Option 
having an exercise price of $0.075 and expiring on 5 November 2015 to raise funds to undertake exploration 
programs over the Company’s 80% interest in the Kitgum – Pader precious and base metals project in Uganda, 
undertake exploration activities associated with the Company’s Thaduna copper project, to meet the expenses 
of the entitlement issue, and general working capital. 

Through the take-up of the entitlement issue and shortfall, 127,010,160 Shares and 127,010,160 Options were 
issued to raise total proceeds of $4,445,356.  In addition 7,000,000 Options were issued to Blue Ocean Equities 
Pty Limited for service related to the management of the shortfall under the Entitlement Issue. 

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE 

There has not been any matter or circumstance, other than that referred to in the financial statements or notes 
thereto, that has arisen since the end of the financial year, that has significantly affected, or may significantly 
affect, the operations of the consolidated entity, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the 
consolidated entity in future financial years, except for the following: 
 
On 24 July 2014, Mr Doepel retired from the position of Managing Director and Ms Lynda Daley was appointed 
as Managing Director.  On that same date Mr Doepel was appointed a Non-Executive Director of the Company. 
On 12 September 2014, Mr Doepel resigned from the position of Non-Executive Director. 

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS 

The consolidated entity intends to continue its current operations of tenement acquisition and mineral 
exploration with a view to commercial development. 

Likely developments that are included elsewhere in this report or the financial statements will, amongst other 
things, depend upon the success of the exploration and development programs. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS 

In the course of its normal mining and exploration activities the consolidated entity promotes an 
environmentally responsible culture and adheres to environmental regulations of the Department of Industry 
and Resources, particularly those regulations relating to ground disturbance and the protection of rare and 
endangered flora and fauna. The consolidated entity has complied with all material environmental requirements 
up to the date of this report. 

SHARE OPTIONS 

Unissued shares 

As at the date of this report, there were 156,468,496 unissued ordinary shares under options (156,468,496 at 
reporting date). Refer also to Note 13 of the financial statements for further details of the options outstanding. 

Option holders do not have any right, by virtue of the option, to participate in any share issue of the company or 
any related body corporate.  

Shares issued as a result of the exercise of options 

There were 3,334 fully paid ordinary shares issued pursuant to the exercise of options during or since the end of 
the financial year.  
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INDEMNIFYING OFFICER  

The Company has agreed to indemnify each of the Directors from liabilities incurred while acting as a director 
and to grant certain rights and privileges to the Director to the extent permitted by law.   

The Company has not, during or since the end of the financial year, in respect of any person who is or has been 
an officer of the Company or a related body corporate incurred any expense in relation to the indemnification. 

The Company has also paid premiums to insure each of the Directors and officers against liabilities for costs and 
expenses incurred by them in defending any legal proceedings arising out of their conduct while acting in the 
capacity of Director of the Company or a controlled entity in the consolidated entity, other than conduct 
involving a wilful breach of duty in relation to the consolidated entity.  The contract of insurance prohibits 
disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium. 

INDEMNIFICATION OF AUDITORS 

To the extent permitted by law, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditors, Ernst & Young, as part of the 
terms of its audit engagement agreement against claims by third parties arising from the audit (for an 
unspecified amount). No payment has been made to indemnify Ernst & Young during or since the financial 
year. 
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) 

The information in this section of the Directors’ Report has been audited. 

This report outlines the remuneration arrangements in place for directors and Key Management Personnel of 
Sipa Resources Limited (the Company) in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and 
its Regulations.  For the purposes of this report Key Management Personnel of the Group are defined as those 
persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the major activities of the 
Company and the Group, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of the 
parent company.   

The details of the key management personnel during the year are as follows: 

Directors 

P I Pearce Chairman (non-executive) 
M Doepel Managing Director1 (executive) 
Williams Director (non-executive) 
D Gooding Director (non-executive) 
K Field Director (non-executive) 
 

Executives 

L Daley Exploration Manager1 (5 June – 24 
July 2014) 

T Robson Company Secretary 
 

1 On 24 July 2014, Mr Doepel retired from the position of Managing Director and Ms Lynda Daley was 
appointed as Managing Director.  On that same date Mr Doepel was appointed a Non-Executive Director of the 
Company. Mr Doepel resigned from the position of Non-Executive Director on 12 September 2014. 

Remuneration philosophy 

Corporate performance is enhanced when the Board and executives have the appropriate competencies to enable 
it to discharge its mandate effectively.  To prosper, the company must attract, motivate and retain highly skilled 
directors and executives.   

Nomination and Compensation Committee 

The Nomination and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for 
determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the directors, the managing director (CEO) and the 
senior management team.  The Nomination and Compensation Committee assess the appropriateness of the 
nature and amount of remuneration of directors and senior managers on a periodic basis by reference to relevant 
employment market conditions with the overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the 
retention of a high quality board and executive team. 

Non-executive director compensation 

Fees and payments to non-executive directors reflect the demands which are made on, and the responsibilities of 
the directors.  Non-executive directors’ fees and payments are determined within an aggregate directors’ fee 
pool limit, which is periodically recommended by the Nomination and Compensation Committee for approval 
by shareholders.  The maximum currently stands at $200,000 which was last increased in November 2004.  It is 
the discretion of the board to distribute this pool amongst the non-executive directors based on the 
responsibilities assumed.  The compensation of non-executive directors for the period ending 30 June 2014 is 
detailed in Table 1 on page 6 of this report. 

Executive compensation framework 

The Company aims to reward the executive with a level and mix of compensation commensurate with their 
position and responsibilities within the company.  It also strives to ensure the general level of compensation and 
benefits for persons holding similar positions in the mining industry in Western Australia is achieved and other 
such factors as the Board considers relevant.  The Board (through the Nomination and Compensation 
Committee) is assisted in the process by the use of independent salary data.   

There is no short term incentive component.  The executive pay and reward framework has 3 components: 

• Base pay; 

• Long-term incentives through participation in the Sipa Resources Limited Employee Share Option Plan 
details of which are set out on page 6; and 

• Superannuation at the statutory rate. 
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Whilst the objective of the executive remuneration framework is to link the executive reward to the performance 
of the consolidated entity over a number of years, there are no predetermined measures within the exploration 
industry which directly link the executive compensation to the earnings of the company.  Base pay is structured 
as a total employment cost package which may be delivered as a mix of cash and other benefits at the 
executives’ discretion with the objective of ensuring that it is competitive when considering the market for a 
comparable role.  It is reviewed periodically. 

The table below shows the performance of the Group as measured by share price. 
 

As at 30 June 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 

Share price (cents per share) $0.049 $0.058 $0.087 $0.057 $0.082 

Net loss per year ended $4,504,830 $5,717,678 $5,151,591 $5,714,585 $3,326,688 

The fixed compensation of the key management personnel is detailed in Table 1 below. 

Table 1:  Remuneration of key management personnel for the year ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 

  Short-
term 

benefits 

Post-employment Other 
long-term 
benefits 

Share-based 
payment 

Name Cash 
Salary 

and Fees 

Super-
annuation 

Retirement 
Provision* 

Long 
Service 
Leave 

Options Total % 
Performance 

Related 

% 
Options 

Non-executive directors        
P I B Pearce 2014 

2013 
57,656 
78,487 

5,338 
7,063 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

62,994 
85,550 

0% 
0% 

0% 
0% 

D L Gooding 2014 
2013 

25,711 
35,000 

2,476 
3,150 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

28,187 
38,150 

0% 
0% 

0% 
0% 

D J Williams 2014 
2013 

25,711 
35,000 

2,476 
3,150 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

28,187 
38,150 

0% 
0% 

0% 
0% 

K L Field 2014 
2013 

25,711 
35,000 

2,476 
3,150 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

28,187 
38,150 

0% 
0% 

0% 
0% 

Executive director        

M G Doepel1 2014 
2013 

275,000 
275,000 

25,438 
24,750 

- 
- 

6,162 
5,527 

- 
- 

306,600 
305,277 

0% 
0% 

0% 
0% 

Other key management 
personnel 

       

L M Daley1 2014 
2013 

18,836 
- 

1,789 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

20,625 
- 

0% 
0% 

0% 
0% 

T A Robson  2014 
2013 

106,764 
95,788 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

106,764 
95,788 

0% 
0% 

0% 
0% 

The non-executive directors waived their fees for a period during the year whilst funding opportunities were 
considered.    

*  The Directors’ Retirement Scheme, approved by a meeting of shareholders, was frozen in the year ended 30 
June 2008 with no further provision being made. 
1 On 24 July 2014, Mr Doepel retired from the position of Managing Director and Ms Lynda Daley was 
appointed as Managing Director.  On that same date Mr Doepel was appointed a Non-Executive Director of the 
Company. Mr Doepel resigned from the position of Non-Executive Director on 12 September 2014. 

Table 2:  Compensation options:  Granted and vested during the year 

Long term incentives are administered through participation in the Sipa Resources Employee Share Option Plan 
(the “ESOP”).  The ESOP was last approved by members at the 25 November 2010 AGM in an effort to meet 
the conditions of the ASIC class order for an eligible scheme and for purposes of Listing Rule 7.1. 

The ESOP provides for free options to be issued to Participants, as determined by the directors in their absolute 
discretion based on various factors including length of service and the contribution that the participant will have 
to the long term performance of the Company.  In the event of an employee or key management personnel 
leaving the Company, the options held are forfeited, unless otherwise agreed by the Board.  The expense 
recognised in profit and loss in relation to share-based payments is disclosed in Note 3(c). 
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Table 2:  Compensation options:  Granted and vested during the year (Continued) 

The Board is of the view that the expiry date and exercise price of issued options is sufficient to align the goals 
of directors and executives with those of the shareholder to maximise shareholder wealth, and as such, has not 
set any performance conditions for the directors or the executives of the Company with the exception of 
continued service.  

The Company prohibits key management personnel from entering into any arrangement which has the effect of 
limiting their exposure in relation to the risk inherent in issued options.  The Company’s Share Trading Policy 
governs when Sipa employees, directors, contractors, and consultants may deal in the Company’s securities and 
the procedures that must be followed for such dealings.  A copy of the policy is located at sipa.com.au. 

No options have vested or were granted during the current or previous financial year. 

Table 3:  Value of options awarded, exercised and lapsed during the year 

There were no options awarded or exercised during the current or previous year.  There were no alterations to 
the terms and conditions of options awarded as remuneration since their award date. 

Further details relating to options are set out below: 

Shares provided on exercise of remuneration options 

There were no shares provided on exercise of remuneration options during the financial year ended 30 June 
2014. 

Lapsed Options 

There were no options which lapsed during the year.   

Service Agreements 

Compensation and other terms of employment for the Managing Director and key management personnel are 
formalised in service agreements.  Each of these agreements provide for the provision of cash salary and 
participation, when eligible, in the Sipa Resources Limited Employee Option Plan.  Other major provisions are 
set out below. 

M G Doepel, Managing Director (Until retirement on 24 July 2014) 

• Term of agreement, 1/12/10 – 1/12/13, and continuing monthly until retirement on 24 July 2014. 

• Base salary of $275,000 and $25,437 superannuation    

• Termination notice of 3 months by either the company or the Managing Director. 

• Payment of termination benefit on early termination by the employer other than for gross misconduct equal 
to the annual remuneration package.   

L M Daley, Exploration Manager (5/6/14 – 24/7/14), Managing Director (24/7/14 – Present)   

• Term of agreement is continuing. 

• Base salary of $275,000 and $18,783 superannuation    

• Termination notice of 6 months by the company or 3 months by the Managing Director. 

• Payment of termination benefit on early termination by the employer other than for gross misconduct equal 
to 6 months the annual remuneration package.   

• Ms Daley may terminate the agreement by 1 months notice in the event she is demoted from her position 
without good cause, or is requested, without good cause to assume responsibilities or perform tasks not 
reasonably consistent with her position.  In this instance, she will, subject to shareholder approval if 
necessary, be entitled to a payout of 1 years base salary. 

T A Robson, Company Secretary 

• Base salary of $112 per hour 

• Termination notice of 1 month by either party 
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Table 4: Share holdings of key management personnel (including nominees) 

The numbers of shares in the company held during the financial year by each director of Sipa Resources Limited 
and other key management personnel of the Group, including their personally related parties, are set out below.  
There were no shares granted during the reporting period as compensation. 

2014 

Balance at 
the start of 

the year 

Received during 
the year on 
exercise of 

options 

Acquisition 
pursuant to 
Entitlement 

Offer & 
Shortfall^ 

Other 
changes 

during the 
year 

Balance at the end 
of the year 

Directors 
P I B Pearce 1,306,561 - 435,521 - 1,742,082 

M G Doepel 5,174,514 - 5,714,286 - 10,888,800 

D L Gooding 194,017 - 64,673 - 258,690 

D J Williams - - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 

K L Field - - 750,000 - 750,000 

Executives 
L M Daley - - 300,000 - 300,000 

T A Robson 3,915,384 -  (819,266) 3,096,118 
^ Relates to shares purchased by Directors at fair value through the entitlement offer and shortfall undertaken 
during the period, Directors were acting as shareholders and no shares were issued as compensation for services 
provided. 

Table 5: Option holdings of key management personnel (including nominees) 

 

30 June 2014 Balance at 
start of the 

year 

Granted as 
remuneration 

Options 
exercised 

Acquisition 
pursuant to 
Entitlement 

Offer & 
Shortfall^ 

Balance at 
the end of 
the year 

Vested 
(Exercisabl

e) 

Unvested 
(Non- 

exercisable) 

Directors        
P I B Pearce - - - 435,521 435,521 435,521 - 
M G Doepel 2,000,000 - - 5,714,286 7,714,286 7,714,286 - 
D L Gooding - - - 64,673 64,673 64,673 - 
D J Williams - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 
K L Field - - - 750,000 750,000 750,000 - 

Executives        
L M Daley - - - 300,000 300,000 300,000  
T A Robson 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 

Totals 3,000,000 - - 7,724,708 11,264,480 11,264,480 - 
^ Relates to free attaching options acquired by Directors at fair value through the entitlement offer and shortfall 
undertaken during the period, Directors were acting as shareholders and no options were issued as compensation 
for services provided. 
 

Other transactions with key management personnel 

Mr D J Williams, a director of the company, is a commercial counsel with the legal practice Williams and 
Hughes Pty Ltd which provides legal advice to the company. All transactions with Williams and Hughes are at 
competitive market rates and performed primarily by staff of Williams and Hughes Pty Ltd. The total services 
recognised as an expense for the year amounted to $5,998 (2013: $11,301). 

 

This is the end of the Remuneration Report 
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS 

 Directors’ 
Meetings 

Audit 
Committee 

Nomination and 
Compensation 

Committee 

Continuous 
Disclosure 
Committee 

Number of meetings held 11 2 - - 

Number of meetings attended     

P I B Pearce 11 N/A - N/A 

M G Doepel 11 N/A N/A - 

D L Gooding 11 2 N/A N/A 

D J Williams 10 1 N/A N/A 

K L Field 11 
1 (As Alternate 

for Mr Williams) 
- - 

LEAD AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE 
CORPORATIONS ACT 2001 

The lead auditor’s independence declaration under Section 307c of the Corporations Act 2001 forms part of the 
Directors’ Report and is set out on the following page. 
  

NON-AUDIT SERVICES 

The following non-audit services were provided by the entity’s auditor, Ernst & Young.  The directors are 
satisfied that the provision of non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence for 
auditors imposed by the Corporations Act.  The nature and scope of each type of non-audit service provided 
means that auditor independence was not compromised. 

Ernst & Young received or are due to receive the following amounts for the provision of non-audit services: 

Tax compliance services   $19,989 

 
 
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors. 
 
 

 
_______________________ 
L M Daley 
Managing Director 

 
DATED 17 September 2014 



A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation 

 

GL:DR:SIPA:009 

Ernst & Young 
11 Mounts Bay Road 
Perth  WA  6000  Australia 
GPO Box M939   Perth  WA  6843 

 Tel: +61 8 9429 2222 
Fax: +61 8 9429 2436 
ey.com/au 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of SIPA Resources 
Limited 
 
In relation to our audit of the financial report of SIPA Resources Limited for the financial year ended 
30 June 2014, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the auditor 
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional conduct. 

 
 
 

Ernst & Young 
 
 
 
 
G Lotter 
Partner 
17 September 2014 
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  Consolidated 
 Note 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
    

Revenue 3 120,829 356,780 

Other income 3 8,107 - 

Exploration expenditure 3 (1,937,525) (3,998,588) 

Administrative expenses  (1,662,500) (1,502,134) 

Impairment loss on available for sale assets  - (4,000) 

Share of net loss of jointly controlled entity  (1,033,741) (569,736) 

    

Loss before income tax  (4,504,830) (5,717,678) 

Income tax expense 4 - - 

Net loss for the year   ( 4,504,830) (5,717,678) 

Items that may subsequently be classified through profit 

and loss 

   

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign 
operations 

 30,285 (58,175) 

Total comprehensive loss for the year  (4,474,545) (5,775,853) 

    

Loss per share (cents per share)    

 - Basic loss per share for the year  15 (0.80) (1.10) 

 - Diluted loss per share for the year 15 (0.80) (1.10) 

  
 
The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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  Consolidated 
 Note 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 

ASSETS    

Current Assets    

Cash and cash equivalents 5 4,013,814 3,811,327 

Term deposits reserved for rehabilitation 6 162,368 200,368 

Trade and other receivables 7 80,191 202,784 

Prepayments  35,246 137,800 

Total Current Assets  4,291,619 4,352,279 

    

Non-Current Assets    

Available-for-sale financial assets 8 8,000 8,000 

Investment in jointly controlled entity 21 112,865 68,405 

Other financial assets 9 44,245 44,245 

Property, plant and equipment 10 295,038 376,142 

Total Non-Current Assets  460,148 496,792 

TOTAL ASSETS  4,751,767 4,849,070 

    

LIABILITIES    

Current Liabilities    

Trade and other payables 11 395,505 309,200 

Provisions 12 571,184 641,994 

Total Current Liabilities  966,689 951,194 

    

Non-Current Liabilities    

Provisions 12 45,012 43,371 

Total Non-Current Liabilities  45,012 43,371 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  1,011,701 994,565 

NET ASSETS  3,740,066 3,854,505 

    

EQUITY    

Contributed equity 13 93,169,829 88,839,221 

Equity benefits reserve  1,203,034 1,173,538 

Foreign currency translation reserve  (27,890) (58,175) 

Accumulated losses  (90,604,907) (86,100,079) 

TOTAL EQUITY  3,740,066 3,854,505 

 
 

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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  Consolidated 

 Note 2014 
$ 

2013 
$ 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities    

Payments to suppliers and employees  (1,595,257) (1,445,935) 

Expenditure on exploration interests  (2,002,696) (5,338,070) 

Reimbursement of exploration from other parties  274,450 1,124,596 

Receipts from technical service revenue  27,043 114,138 

Interest and other items of a similar nature received  93,786 303,542 

Receipt of other miscellaneous  35,463 - 

Net Cash used in operating activities 16 (3,167,211) (5,241,729)  

    

Cash Flows From Investing Activities    

Payment for purchases of property, plant and equipment  (10,491) (106,504) 

Proceeds received for sale of property, plant and equipment  30,000 - 

Cash provided on maturity of term deposits  - 4,000,000 

Cash released from term deposits reserved for 
rehabilitation 

 38,000 - 

Disbursement to jointly controlled entity  (1,047,916) (696,316) 

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities  (990,407) 3,197,180 

    

Cash Flows From Financing Activities    

Proceeds from issuance of shares  4,445,608 1,981,750 

Share issue expenses  (85,503) (45,567) 

Net cash provided by financing activities  4,360,105 1,936,183 

    

Net Increase/ (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents  202,487 (108,366) 

Cash And Cash Equivalents At Beginning Of Year  3,811,327 3,919,693 

Cash And Cash Equivalents At The End Of The Year 5 4,013,814 3,811,327 

 

The above Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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CONSOLIDATED 

Note Issued 
capital 

$ 

Accumulated 
losses 

$ 

Equity 
benefits 
reserve 

$ 

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Reserve 

Asset 
revaluation  

reserve 
$ 

Total 
$ 

At 30 June 2012  86,903,038 (80,382,401) 1,173,538 - - 7,694,175 

Loss for the year  - (5,717,678) - - - (5,717,678)

Other comprehensive loss  - - - (58,175) - (58,175)

Total comprehensive loss for 
the year 

 - (5,717,678) - (58,175) - (5,775,853)

Shares issued 13 1,981,750 - - - - 1,981,750 

Cost of issuing shares 13 (45,567) - - - - (45,567) 

At 30 June 2013  88,839,221 (86,100,079) 1,173,538 (58,175) - 3,854,505 

Loss for the year  - (4,504,830) - - - (4,504,830)

Other comprehensive 
profit/(loss) 

 - - - 30,285 - 30,285 

Total comprehensive loss for 
the year 

 - (4,504,830) - 30,285 - (4,474,545)

Shares issued 13 4,445,606 - - - - 4,445,606 

Cost of issuing shares 13 (114,998) - 29,496 - - (85,502) 

At 30 June 2014  93,169,829 (90,604,909) 1,203,034 (27,890) - 3,740,064 

 
The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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1 CORPORATE INFORMATION 

The financial report of Sipa Resources Limited for the year ended 30 June 2014 was authorised for 
issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 17 September 2014. 

Sipa Resources Limited is a for profit company limited by shares incorporated and domiciled in 
Australia whose shares are publicly traded on the Australian Securities Exchange.  The nature of the 
operations and principal activities of the company are described in the Directors’ report.  The parent 
entity is Sipa Resources Limited. 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Basis of preparation  

The financial report is a general-purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with 
the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and other 
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.  The financial report has 
been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for available for sale financial assets that have been 
measured at fair value.   

(b) Compliance statement 

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards and International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. 

(c) Going concern 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the 
continuity of normal business activities and the realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in 
the ordinary course of business. 

At balance date the Group had cash and cash equivalents of $4,013,814 (30 June 2013: $3,811,327) 
and a net working capital surplus of $3,324,930 (30 June 2013: $3,401,085).  

Whilst sufficient cash is available to meet general and administrative requirements, additional funding 
may be necessary for the Group to fulfil its proposed exploration program in the next 12 months. 

At the date of this report, the directors are satisfied there are reasonable grounds to believe that the 
Group will be able to continue its planned exploration and evaluation activities and the Group will be 
able to meet its obligations as and when they fall due. The directors are confident that the Group will 
be able to raise additional capital if required.  

Should the Group not achieve the matter set out above, there is uncertainty whether the Group would 
continue as a going concern and therefore whether it would realise its assets and extinguish its 
liabilities in the normal course of business and at the amounts stated in the financial report. The 
financial statements do not include any adjustment relating to the recoverability or classification of 
recorded asset amounts or to the amounts or classification of liabilities that might be necessary should 
the Group not be able to continue as a going concern. 

(d) New accounting standards and interpretations 

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year.  From 1 July 
2013 the Group has adopted all accounting Standards and Interpretations, mandatory for annual periods 
beginning on or before 1 July 2013, including:  

Reference Title 

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 

AASB 10 establishes a new control model that applies to all entities. It replaces parts of AASB 127 Consolidated and 

Separate Financial Statements dealing with the accounting for consolidated financial statements and UIG-112 Consolidation 

- Special Purpose Entities. 

The new control model broadens the situations when an entity is considered to be controlled by another entity and includes 
new guidance for applying the model to specific situations, including when acting as a manager may give control, the impact 
of potential voting rights and when holding less than a majority voting rights may give control. 
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Reference Title 

Consequential amendments were also made to this and other standards via AASB 2011-7 and AASB 2012-10. 

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements 

AASB 11 replaces AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures and UIG-113 Jointly- controlled Entities - Non-monetary 

Contributions by Ventures.  

AASB 11 uses the principle of control in AASB 10 to define joint control, and therefore the determination of whether joint 
control exists may change. In addition it removes the option to account for jointly controlled entities (JCEs) using 
proportionate consolidation. Instead, accounting for a joint arrangement is dependent on the nature of the rights and 
obligations arising from the arrangement. Joint operations that give the venturers a right to the underlying assets and 
obligations themselves is accounted for by recognising the share of those assets and obligations. Joint ventures that give the 
venturers a right to the net assets is accounted for using the equity method. 

Consequential amendments were also made to this and other standards via AASB 2011-7, AASB 2010-10 and amendments 
to AASB 128. Amendments made by the IASB in May 2014 add guidance on how to account for the acquisition of an 
interest in a joint operation that constitutes a business 

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 

AASB 12 includes all disclosures relating to an entity's interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured 
entities. New disclosures have been introduced about the judgments made by management to determine whether control 
exists, and to require summarised information about joint arrangements, associates, structured entities and subsidiaries with 
non-controlling interests. 

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement 

AASB 13 establishes a single source of guidance for determining the fair value of assets and liabilities. AASB 13 does not 
change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather, provides guidance on how to determine fair value when fair 
value is required or permitted. Application of this definition may result in different fair values being determined for the 
relevant assets. 

AASB 13 also expands the disclosure requirements for all assets or liabilities carried at fair value. This includes information 
about the assumptions made and the qualitative impact of those assumptions on the fair value determined. 

Consequential amendments were also made to other standards via AASB 2011-8. 

AASB 119 Employee Benefits 

The main change introduced by this standard is to revise the accounting for defined benefit plans. The amendment removes 
the options for accounting for the liability, and requires that the liabilities arising from such plans is recognised in full with 
actuarial gains and losses being recognised in other comprehensive income. It also revised the method of calculating the 
return on plan assets. 

The revised standard changes the definition of short-term employee benefits. The distinction between short-term and other 
long-term employee benefits is now based on whether the benefits are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after 
the reporting date. 

Consequential amendments were also made to other standards via AASB 2011-10. 

Adoption of these standards and interpretations did not have any material effect on the financial 
position or performance of the Group.  

The Group has not elected to early adopt any new standards or amendments. 

Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective 

Australian Accounting Standards and interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are 
not yet effective have not been adopted by the Group for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 
2014. The Group have assessed that these standards and interpretations should not have a material 
effect on the financial statements. These are outlined in the table below: 

Reference Title Summary Application 
date of 

standard* 

Application 
date for 
Group* 

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards - 
Offsetting Financial Assets 

and Financial Liabilities 

AASB 2012-3 adds application guidance to AASB 132 Financial 

Instruments: Presentation to address inconsistencies identified in 
applying some of the offsetting criteria of AASB 132, including 
clarifying the meaning of "currently has a legally enforceable 
right of set-off" and that some gross settlement systems may be 
considered equivalent to net settlement. 

1 January 
2014 

1 July 
2014 
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Reference Title Summary Application 
date of 

standard* 

Application 
date for 
Group* 

Interpretation 
21 

Levies 

 

This Interpretation confirms that a liability to pay a levy is only 
recognised when the activity that triggers the payment occurs.  
Applying the going concern assumption does not create a 
constructive obligation. 

1 January 
2014 

1 July 
2014 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments On 24 July 2014 The IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 
which replaces IAS 39 and includes a logical model for 
classification and measurement, a single, forward-looking 
‘expected loss’ impairment model and a substantially-
reformed approach to hedge accounting. 

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2018. However, the Standard is available for early 
application. The own credit changes can be early applied in 
isolation without otherwise changing the accounting for financial 
instruments. 

The final version of IFRS 9 introduces a new expected-loss 
impairment model that will require more timely recognition of 
expected credit losses. Specifically, the new Standard requires 
entities to account for expected credit losses from when financial 
instruments are first recognised and to recognise full lifetime 
expected losses on a more timely basis. 

The AASB is yet to issue the final version of AASB 9. A revised 
version of AASB 9 (AASB 2013-9) was issued in December 
2013 which included the new hedge accounting requirements, 
including changes to hedge effectiveness testing, treatment of 
hedging costs, risk components that can be hedged and 
disclosures. 

 AASB 9 includes requirements for a simplified approach for 
classification and measurement of financial assets compared with 
the requirements of AASB 139. 

The main changes are described below. 

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments will be classified 
based on (1) the objective of the entity's business model 
for managing the financial assets; (2) the characteristics of 
the contractual cash flows. 

b. Allows an irrevocable election on initial recognition to 
present gains and losses on investments in equity 
instruments that are not held for trading in other 
comprehensive income. Dividends in respect of these 
investments that are a return on investment can be 
recognised in profit or loss and there is no impairment or 
recycling on disposal of the instrument. 

c. Financial assets can be designated and measured at fair 
value through profit or loss at initial recognition if doing 
so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or 
recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring 
assets or liabilities, or recognising the gains and losses on 
them, on different bases. 

d. Where the fair value option is used for financial liabilities 
the change in fair value is to be accounted for as follows: 

► The change attributable to changes in credit risk are 
presented in other comprehensive income (OCI). 

► The remaining change is presented in profit or loss. 

AASB 9 also removes the volatility in profit or loss that was 
caused by changes in the credit risk of liabilities elected to be 
measured at fair value. This change in accounting means that 
gains caused by the deterioration of an entity’s own credit risk 
on such liabilities are no longer recognised in profit or loss. 

Consequential amendments were also made to other standards 
as a result of AASB 9, introduced by AASB 2009-11 and 

1 January 
2018 

1 July 
2018 
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Reference Title Summary Application 
date of 

standard* 

Application 
date for 
Group* 

superseded by AASB 2010-7, AASB 2010-10 and AASB 
2014-1 – Part E. 

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – 

Recoverable 

Amount Disclosures for Non-

Financial Assets 

AASB 2013-3 amends the disclosure requirements in AASB 136 
Impairment of Assets. The amendments include the requirement 
to disclose additional information about the fair value 
measurement when the recoverable amount of impaired assets is 
based on fair value less costs of disposal.   

1 January 
2014 

1 July 
2014 

AASB 2013-4 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – 
Novation of Derivatives and 
Continuation of Hedge 
Accounting [AASB 139] 

AASB 2013-4 amends AASB 139 to permit the continuation of 
hedge accounting in specified circumstances where a derivative, 
which has been designated as a hedging instrument, is novated 
from one counterparty to a central counterparty as a consequence 
of laws or regulations. 

1 January 
2014 

1 July 
2014 

AASB 2013-5 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – 
Investment Entities 
[AASB 1, AASB 3, AASB 7, 
AASB 10, AASB 12, AASB 
107, AASB 112, AASB 124, 
AASB 127, AASB 132, 
AASB 134 & AASB 139] 

These amendments define an investment entity and require that, 
with limited exceptions, an investment entity does not 
consolidate its subsidiaries or apply AASB 3 Business 

Combinations when it obtains control of another entity.  

These amendments require an investment entity to measure 
unconsolidated subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in 
its consolidated and separate financial statements.  

These amendments also introduce new disclosure requirements 
for investment entities to AASB 12 and AASB 127. 

1 January 
2014 

1 July  
2014 

AASB 2014-1  
Part A -
Annual 
Improvements  

2010–2012 
Cycle 

Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards  - Part 

A  

Annual Improvements to 
IFRSs 2010–2012 Cycle 

AASB 2014-1 Part A: This standard sets out amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards arising from the issuance by 
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) of 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) Annual 

Improvements to IFRSs 2010–2012 Cycle and Annual 

Improvements to IFRSs 2011–2013 Cycle. 

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010–2012 Cycle  addresses the 
following items: 

► AASB 2 - Clarifies the definition of 'vesting conditions' and 
'market condition' and introduces the definition of 
'performance condition' and 'service condition'. 

► AASB 3 - Clarifies the classification requirements for 
contingent consideration in a business combination by 
removing all references to AASB 137. 

► AASB 8 - Requires entities to disclose factors used to 
identify the entity's reportable segments when operating 
segments have been aggregated.  An entity is also required to 
provide a reconciliation of total reportable segments' asset to 
the entity's total assets.   

► AASB 116 & AASB 138 - Clarifies that the determination of 
accumulated depreciation does not depend on the selection of 
the valuation technique and that it is calculated as the 
difference between the gross and net carrying amounts. 

► AASB 124 - Defines a management entity providing KMP 
services as a related party of the reporting entity. The 
amendments added an exemption from the detailed 
disclosure requirements in paragraph 17 of AASB 124 for 
KMP services provided by a management entity. Payments 
made to a management entity in respect of KMP services 
should be separately disclosed. 

1 July 2014 1 July 
2014 

AASB 2014-1  
Part A -
Annual 
Improvements  

2011–2013 
Cycle  

Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards  - Part 

A  

Annual Improvements to 
IFRSs 2011–2013 Cycle 

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011–2013 Cycle  addresses the 
following items: 

► AASB13 - Clarifies that the portfolio exception in paragraph 
52 of AASB 13 applies to all contracts within the scope of 
AASB 139 or AASB 9, regardless of whether they meet the 
definitions of financial assets or financial liabilities as 

1 July 2014 1 July 
2014 
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Reference Title Summary Application 
date of 

standard* 

Application 
date for 
Group* 

defined in AASB 132. 

► AASB140 - Clarifies that judgment is needed to determine 
whether an acquisition of investment property is solely the 
acquisition of an investment property or whether it is the 
acquisition of a group of assets or a business combination in 
the scope of AASB 3 that includes an investment property. 
That judgment is based on guidance in AASB 3. 

AASB 1031  Materiality The revised AASB 1031 is an interim standard that cross-
references to other Standards and the Framework (issued 
December 2013) that contain guidance on materiality.  

AASB 1031 will be withdrawn when references to AASB 1031 
in all Standards and Interpretations have been removed.  

AASB 2014-1 Part C issued in June 2014 makes amendments to 
eight Australian Accounting Standards to delete their references 
to AASB 1031. The amendments are effective from 1 July 
2014*. 

1 July 2014 1 July 
2014 

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – 
Conceptual Framework, 
Materiality and Financial 
Instruments 

The Standard contains three main parts and makes amendments 
to a number Standards and Interpretations.  

Part B makes amendments to particular Australian Accounting 
Standards to delete references to AASB 1031 and also makes 
minor editorial amendments to various other standards. 

Part C makes amendments to a number of Australian Accounting 
Standards, including incorporating Chapter 6 Hedge Accounting 
into AASB 9 Financial Instruments.  

^ ^ 

Amendments 
to 

IAS 16 and 
IAS 38***** 

Clarification of Acceptable 
Methods of Depreciation and 
Amortisation (Amendments to 

IAS 16 and IAS 38) 

IAS 16 and IAS 38 both establish the principle for the basis of 
depreciation and amortisation as being the expected pattern of 
consumption of the future economic benefits of an asset.  

The IASB has clarified that the use of revenue-based methods to 
calculate the depreciation of an asset is not appropriate because 
revenue generated by an activity that includes the use of an asset 
generally reflects factors other than the consumption of the 
economic benefits embodied in the asset. 

The IASB also clarified that revenue is generally presumed to be 
an inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption of the 
economic benefits embodied in an intangible asset. This 
presumption, however, can be rebutted in certain limited 
circumstances.  

1 January 
2016 

1 July 
2016 

IFRS 15 

***** 

Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers 

IFRS 15 establishes principles for reporting useful information to 
users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing 
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an 
entity’s contracts with customers. 

IFRS 15 supersedes: 
(a) IAS 11 Construction Contracts 
(b) IAS 18 Revenue 
(c) IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 
(d) IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate 
(e) IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers 
(f) SIC-31 Revenue—Barter Transactions Involving Advertising 
Services 

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises 
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to 
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which 
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or 
services. An entity recognises revenue in accordance with that 
core principle by applying the following steps: 
(a) Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer 
(b) Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract 
(c) Step 3: Determine the transaction price 
(d) Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance 

1 January 
2017 

1 July 
2017 
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Reference Title Summary Application 
date of 

standard* 

Application 
date for 
Group* 

obligations in the contract 
(e) Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a 
performance obligation 

Early application of this standard is permitted. 

 

* Designates the beginning of the applicable annual reporting period unless otherwise stated. 

***** These IFRS amendments have not yet been adopted by the AASB. In order to claim compliance with IFRS, these amendments should be noted in the 
financial statements. 

^ The application dates of AASB 2013-9 are as follows: 
 Part B - periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 Application date for the Group:  period beginning 1 July 2014 
 Part C - reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015 Application date for the Group:  period beginning 1 July 2015 
 

(c) Basis of consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Sipa Resources Limited (the 
“Company” or “parent entity”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group” or “Sipa”) as at 30 June each year.   

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement 
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. 
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has: 

• Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant 
activities of the investee) 

• Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and 

• The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns 

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group 
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, 
including: 

• The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee 

• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 

• The Consolidated Entity’s voting rights and potential voting rights 

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that 
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins 
when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the 
subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the 
year are included in the statement of comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until 
the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. 

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity holders 
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling 
interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of 
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-
Group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between 
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. 

(d) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

(i) Significant accounting judgements 

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made no judgements, apart 
from those involving estimations, which have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements except as follows: 

(ii) Significant accounting estimates and assumptions 

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are often determined based on estimates and 
assumptions of future events. The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing 
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities within the next annual 
reporting period are: 
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Share-based payment transactions 

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions by reference to the fair value of the equity 
instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined using a binomial model, 
using the assumptions detailed in note 14. 

(e) Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable to the 
extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be 
reliably measured.   The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is 
recognised: 

Interest income 

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues (using the effective interest method, which is the method 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the life of the financial asset) to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset.   

Technical services revenue 

Revenue from the provision of labour services is recognised in the month the service is provided. 

(f) Leases 

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on 
the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.   

Group as a lessee 

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to 
ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased 
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.  Lease payments are 
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant 
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as an expense 
in the income statement. 

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the 
lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the 
lease term.   

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term.  Lease incentives are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of total 
lease expense. 

(g) Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. 

For purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash 
equivalents as defined above.   

(h) Term deposits reserved for rehabilitation  

Term deposits reserved for rehabilitation, classified as other receivables short to medium term-term 
deposits with an original maturity of three to twelve months or less. 

Bankwest has given a guarantee to the Department of Minerals and Energy in respect of performance 
bonds totalling $162,238 for which the bank has a lien on an equivalent amount of the company’s term 
deposits.   

  



Sipa Resources Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements - For the Year Ended 30 June 2014 

 

 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

- 22 - 

(i) Trade and other receivables 

Trade receivables, which generally have 30-90 day terms, are recognised and carried at original invoice 
amount less any allowance for uncollectible amounts.  An allowance for doubtful debts is made when 
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect the debts.  Financial difficulties of 
the debtor, default payments or debts more than 60 days overdue are considered objective evidence of 
impairment.  Bad debts are written off when identified. 

(j) Derecognition of financial instruments 

The derecognition of a financial instrument takes place when the Group no longer controls the 
contractual rights that comprise the financial instrument, which is normally the case when the 
instrument is sold, or all the cash flows attributable to the instrument are passed through to an 
independent third party. 

(k) Impairment of Assets 

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.  
If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group 
makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.  An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its 
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless that 
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of 
assets and the asset’s value in use cannot be estimated to be close to its fair value.  In such cases the 
asset is tested for impairment as part of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs.  When the 
carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or cash 
generating unit is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset.  Impairment losses relating to continuing operations are recognised in the income 
statement unless the asset is carried at revalued amount (in which case the impairment loss is treated as 
a revaluation decrease). 

An assessment is also made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously 
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.  If such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount is estimated.  A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has 
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognised.  If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its 
recoverable amount.  That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.  
Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case 
the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.  After such a reversal the depreciation charge is 
adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a 
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.   

(l) Interest in a jointly controlled asset 

The Group has an interest in a joint venture that is a jointly controlled asset.  A joint venture is a 
contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to 
joint control.  A jointly controlled asset involves use of assets and other resources of the venturers 
rather than establishment of a separate entity.  The Group recognises its interest in the jointly controlled 
asset by recognising the assets that it controls and the liabilities that it incurs.  The Group also 
recognises the expenses that it incurs and its share of the income that it earns from the sale of goods or 
services by the jointly controlled asset.    

(m) Interest in a joint venture 

The Group has an interest in a joint venture, which is a jointly controlled entity, whereby the venturers 
have a contractual arrangement that establishes joint control over the economic activities of the entity. 
The agreement requires unanimous agreement for financial and operating decisions among the 
venturers. The Group recognises its interest in the joint venture using the equity method. Under the 
equity method, the investment in the joint venture is carried on the statement of financial position at 
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cost plus post acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture. The statement 
of comprehensive income reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the joint venture. 
When there has been a change recognised directly in equity of the joint venture, the group recognises 
its share of and changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. 
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the joint venture is 
eliminated to the extent of the interest in the joint venture. The Group’s share of profit or loss of the 
joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of comprehensive income. This is the profit or loss 
attributable to equity holders of the joint venture and, therefore, is profit or loss after tax and non-
controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the joint venture. The financial statements of the joint venture 
are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to 
bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group. 

(n) Foreign currency translation 

The Group’s consolidated financial report is presented in Australian Dollars, which is also the parent 
company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group and its joint venture determines its own 
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity is measured using that 
functional currency. The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Australian 
Dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their income statements are 
translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising 
on translation for consolidation are recognised in other comprehensive income. On disposal of a 
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particulare foreign 
operation is recognised in the income statement. 

(o) Income tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected 
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.  The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.   

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.  

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except: 

• when the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset 
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, 
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; or 

• when the taxable temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries, or interest in 
joint ventures and the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is 
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of 
unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax assets 
and unused tax losses can be utilised except: 

• when the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the 
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at 
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; or 

• when the deductible temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries or interest 
in joint venture, in which case a deferred tax asset is only recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit 
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised 
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be 
recovered. 

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or 
part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. 
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the 
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 

Income taxes relating to items recognised directly in equity are recognised in equity and not in the 
income statement. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set 
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax liabilities relate to the same 
taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

(p) GST 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except: 

• when the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation 
authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as 
part of the expense item as applicable; and 

• receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 
receivables or payables in the balance sheet. 

Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis and the GST component of cash 
flows arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the 
taxation authority are classified as operating cash flows.  Commitments and contingencies are disclosed 
net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority. 

(q) Plant and Equipment 

Plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 
losses. 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows: 

• Plant and equipment 2 – 15 years 

The assets residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if 
appropriate, at each financial year end. 

Derecognition 

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. 

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the income statement in the 
period the item is derecognised. 

(r) Exploration and Evaluation 

Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred by or on behalf of the consolidated entity is 
accumulated separately for each prospect area. 

The consolidated entity has a policy of writing off all exploration expenditure in the financial year in 
which it is incurred, unless its recoupment out of revenue to be derived from the successful 
development of the prospect, or from sale of that prospect, is assured beyond reasonable doubt. 
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(s) Investments and other financial assets 

Financial assets in the scope of AASB 139 Financial Instruments:  Recognition and Measurement are 
classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate.  The classification depends 
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.  Management determines the classification 
of its financial assets at initial recognition.   

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

This category has two sub-categories:  financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair 
value through profit or loss on initial recognition.  A financial asset is classified in this category if 
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated by management.  
Gains or losses on investments held for trading are recognised in the income statement. 

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 
not quoted in an active market.  Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method.  Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the loans and receivables are 
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.   

Available-for-sale financial assets 

Available-for-sale financial assets, comprising principally marketable equity securities, are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the three preceding 
categories.  After initial recognition available-for-sale investments are measured at fair value with 
gains or losses being recognised as a separate component of equity until the investment is derecognised 
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss 
previously reported in equity is recognised in the income statement. 

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by 
reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date.  For 
investments with no active market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques.  Such 
techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions, reference to the current market value 
of another instrument that is substantially the same, and discounted cash flow analysis.   

(t) Impairment of financial assets 

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is 
impaired. 

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on held-to-maturity investments or loans and 
receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate (ie the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through use of an allowance account. The amount of 
the loss is recognised in income statement. 

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial 
assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not 
individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an 
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of 
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively 
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an 
impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of 
impairment. 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in income 
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statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the 
reversal date. 

(ii) Financial assets carried at cost 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity 
instrument that is not carried at fair value (because its fair value cannot be reliably measured), or on a 
derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, 
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a 
similar financial asset. 

(iii) Available-for-sale investments 

If there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale investment is impaired, an amount comprising 
the difference between its cost and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously 
recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to the income statement. Reversals of impairment 
losses for equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not recognised in profit. A significant 
or prolong decline in market value is considered as objective evidence.  Reversals of impairment losses 
for debt instruments are reversed through the income statement if the increase in an instrument's fair 
value can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit 
or loss. 

(u) Trade and Other Payables 

Trade payables and other payables are carried at amortised costs and represent liabilities for goods and 
services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the 
Group becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and 
services. 

(v) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 

When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a 
finance cost. 

(w) Employee Benefits 

Provision is made for amounts expected to be paid to employees of the Group in respect of their 
entitlement to annual leave and long service leave arising from services rendered by employees to the 
reporting date.  Employee benefits due to be settled within one year arising from wage and salaries and 
annual leave have been measured at the amounts due to be paid when the liabilities are expected to be 
settled and included in provisions.  Long service leave entitlements payable later than one year have 
been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made in respect of 
services provided by employees up to the reporting date.  Under the terms of the Directors’ Retirement 
Scheme (applicable to non-executive directors only), approved by a meeting of shareholders, provision 
has been made for the retirement or loss of office of eligible non-executive Directors of Sipa Resources 
Limited.  The amount payable under the Scheme is equal to one year’s remuneration for each three 
years of completed service as a director of the Company up to a maximum benefit of 3 years 
remuneration. 

(x) Share-based payment transactions 

The Group provides benefits to employees (including directors) of the Group in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares 
(‘equity-settled transactions’).  Equity-settled transactions with employees and directors are 
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administered through the Sipa Resources Employee Share Option Plan which was approved by 
shareholders.   

The cost of these equity-settled transactions with participants is measured by reference to the fair value 
of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined using a 
binomial model. 

In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any performance conditions, other than 
conditions linked to the price of the shares of Sipa Resources Limited (‘market conditions’). 

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, 
over the period in which the performance conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the 
relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (‘vesting date’). 

The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until vesting 
date reflects (i) the extent to which the vesting period has expired and (ii) the Group’s best estimate of 
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. This opinion is formed based on the best 
available information at balance date. No adjustment is made for the likelihood of market performance 
conditions being met as the effect of these conditions is included in the determination of fair value at 
grant date.  The income statement charge or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative 
expense recognised at the beginning and end of that period. 

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is 
only conditional upon a market condition. 

If the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the 
terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that increases 
the total fair value of the share-based payment arrangement or is otherwise beneficial to the employee, 
as measured at the date of modification. 

If an equity-settled award is cancelled (other than for reason of forfeiture), it is treated as if it had 
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised 
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a 
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new award are treated as if they 
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph. 

The dilutive effect, if any, of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the 
computation of earnings per share. 

(y) Contributed Equity 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.  Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new 
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

(z) Earnings Per Share 

Basic EPS is calculated as net profit/loss attributable to members, adjusted to exclude costs of servicing 
equity (other than dividends), divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares, adjusted for 
any bonus element. 

Diluted EPS is calculated as net profit/loss attributable to members, adjusted for: 

• costs of servicing equity (other than dividends); 

• the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that 
have been recognised as expenses; and 

• other non-discretionary changes in revenues or expenses during the period that would result from 
the dilution of potential ordinary shares; 

divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares, 
adjusted for any bonus element. 
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 Consolidated 
3 REVENUES AND EXPENSES   

 
2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 

Revenue and Expenses    

(a) Revenue   

Technical service revenue 27,043 114,138 

Interest revenue 93,786 242,642 

 120,829 356,780 

(b) Other income   

Other 8,107 - 

 8,107 - 

(c) Other expenses   

Exploration expenditure   

Gross exploration expenditure  2,188,209 5,093,687 

Less:  exploration recouped from other parties (250,684) (1,095,099) 

 1,937,525 3,998,588 

Employee benefits expense   

Wages and salaries 1,421,204 1,483,365 
Superannuation 132,146 136,800 
Provision for annual leave 68,995 78,339 
Provision for long service leave (13,483) 20,560 
Workers compensation insurance 6,137 6,817 

 1,614,999 1,725,881 

Employee benefits expense included in:   

Exploration expenditure 995,565 1,151,683 
Administrative expenses 619,434 574,198 

 1,614,999 1,725,881 

Depreciation of plant and equipment 61,282 60,661 
Rental expenses on operating lease 173,338 155,151 
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 Consolidated 
4 INCOME TAX 2014 

$ 
2013 
$ 

(a) Major components of income tax expense for the years 
ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 are: 

  

Income Statement   

Current income tax   
Current income tax benefit - - 
Under/over provision - - 

Deferred income tax   
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary 
differences 

- - 

Deferred tax assets not recognised - - 

Income tax expense reported in income statement - - 

   
(b) A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to 

accounting loss before income tax at the statutory income 
tax rate to income tax expense at the Group’s effective 
income tax rate for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 
is as follows: 

  

Accounting loss before tax (4,504,830) (5,775,853) 

At statutory income tax rate of 30% (2013: 30%) (1,351,449) (1,732,757) 
Non-deductible items  574,695 591,373 
Other deductible amounts not recognised (35,435) (30,466) 
Under/overprovision in prior year (189,554) 1,479 
Unrecognised/(recognised) deferred tax assets 1,001,743 1,170,371 

Income tax expense reported in income statement - - 
 

 Balance Sheet Profit or Loss 
 2014 2013 2014 2013 
(c) Deferred income tax $ $ $ $ 

Deferred income tax at 30 June relates to the 
following: 

    

CONSOLIDATED     
Deferred tax liabilities     
Other (3,882) (4,070) 188 18,270 

 (3,882) (4,070)   

Deferred tax assets     
Provision for employee entitlements 128,567 149,318 (20,751) 14,049 
Superannuation provision 5,558 10,608 (5,050) 6,334 
Accruals 10,500 10,500 - 750 
Carried forward losses 11,211,864 10,184,508 1,027,356 1,130,968 

 11,356,489 10,354,934   
Unrecognised deferred tax assets (11,352,607) (10,350,864) (1,001,743) (1,170,371) 

 3,882 4,070   

     
Net deferred tax asset - -   

Deferred tax expense   - - 
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 Consolidated 
 2014 

$ 
2013 
$ 

Deferred Tax Assets on the Tax losses not recognised  11,211,864 10,184,508 

Directors do not believe it is appropriate to regard realisation of the deferred tax asset as probable as at 30 June 
2014. These benefits will only be obtained if: 

(i) the Consolidated Entity derives future assessable income of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable 
the benefit from the deduction for the loss to be realised; 

(ii) the Consolidated Entity continues to comply with the conditions for the deductibility imposed by law; and 

(iii) no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Consolidated Entity in realising the benefit from the 
deduction for the loss. 

(d) Tax Consolidation 

The Company and its 100% owned subsidiaries formed a tax consolidated group effective 1 July 2003.  The 
head entity of the tax consolidated group is Sipa Resources Limited.  The Sipa group currently does not intend to 
enter into a Tax Sharing or Tax Funding Agreement.  The group allocation method is used to allocate any tax 
expense incurred. 

 Consolidated 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   

Cash at bank and in hand 526,182 461,695 

Short-term deposits 3,487,632 3,349,632 

 4,013,814 3,811,327 

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made 
for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of 
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.  The carrying value approximates fair 
value. 

6 TERM DEPOSITS RESERVED FOR REHABILIATION    

Term deposits reserved for rehabilitation  162,368 200,368 

 162,368 200,368 

Bankwest has given a guarantee to the Department of Minerals and Energy in respect of performance bonds 
totalling $162,368 for which the bank has a lien on an equivalent amount of the company’s term deposits.  
The amount represents guarantees provided by Bankwest in support of exploration program of works. 

 

7 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES   

Trade receivables (a) - 23,766 

Interest receivable (b) 12,941 13,568 

Other receivables (c) 67,250 165,450 

 80,191 202,784 

(a) Trade receivables represent receivables due from other entities for exploration being conducted by the 
Group on behalf of the entities or reimbursement of expenses.  They are non-interest bearing and due 
in 30 days. An allowance for doubtful debts is made when there is objective evidence that a trade 
receivable is impaired.  No such allowance has been recognised as an expense for the current or 
previous year.   

(b) Interest receivable represents interest due on the Group’s term deposits. 

(c) Other receivables are non-interest bearing and due in 30 days generally.  An allowance for doubtful 
debts is made when there is objective evidence that a receivable is impaired.  No such allowance has 
been recognised as an expense for the current or previous year. 
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      Consolidated 

 
2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
8 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS   

At fair value   

Shares in listed entities (a),(b) 8,000 8,000 

 8,000 8,000 

(a) The fair value of listed available for sale investments has been determined directly by reference to 
published price quotations in an active market and classified as Level 1. 

(b) During the current year, nil was recognised in the profit and loss due to no movement in share price. 

9 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 
  

Security deposits (a) 44,245 44,245 

 44,245 44,245 

(a) The terms and conditions of the security deposits are non-interest bearing and refundable upon completion 
of performance obligations associated with completion of the lease term. 

10 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT   

At beginning of the year, net of accumulated depreciation 376,142 330,299 
Additions 10,491 106,504 
Disposals (30,313) - 
Depreciation expense (61,282) (60,661) 

At end of the year, net of accumulated depreciation 295,038 376,142 

At end of year   

Cost 955,489 992,660 
Accumulated depreciation (660,451) (616,518) 

Net book value at end of year  295,038 376,142 

11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CURRENT)   

Trade payables – unsecured 226,004 126,955 
Accrued expenses 169,501 182,245 

 395,505 309,200 

Trade and other payables and accrued expenses are non-interest bearing and are usually settled in 30 days.   

12 PROVISIONS Annual 
Leave 

Long Service 
Leave 

Directors 
Retirement 
Benefit (a) 

Total 

Consolidated     
At 1 July 2013 115,641 271,391 298,333 685,365 
Arising during the year 68,995 12,081 - 81,076 
Utilised during the year (75,058) (75,187) - (150,245) 

Balance at 30 June 2014 109,578 208,285 298,333 616,196 
     

Current 2014 109,578 163,273 298,333 571,184 
Non-Current 2014 - 45,012 - 45,012 

 109,578 208,285 298,333 616,196 

Current 2013 115,641 228,020 298,333 641,994 
Non-Current 2013 - 43,371 - 43,371 

 115,641 271,391 298,333 685,365 

(a) Under the terms of the Directors’ Retirement Scheme, approved by a meeting of shareholders, provision 
has been made for the retirement or loss of office of eligible non-executive Directors of Sipa Resources 
Limited.  There is currently no anticipated date for payment but a constructive obligation exists.  The 
Directors resolved to freeze the scheme with no further provisions being made, in the financial year ended 
30 June 2008, or subsequently. 
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 Consolidated 

 2014 
$ 

2013 
  $ 

13 CONTRIBUTED EQUITY AND RESERVES 

(a) Ordinary shares  
Issued and fully paid shares 

 
93,169,829 

 
88,839,221 

 2014 2013 
Movements in shares on issue No $ No $ 

Balance at beginning of year 481,565,015 88,839,221 455,141,681 86,903,038 

Placement to sophisticated investors - - 26,423,334 1,981,750 

Placement pursuant to Entitlement Offer and 
Shortfall 

 

127,010,160 

 

4,445,356 

 

- 

 

- 

Pursuant to exercise of listed options 3,334 250 - - 

Less transaction costs - (114,998) - (45,567) 

Balance at end of financial year 608,578,509 93,169,829 481,565,015 88,839,221 

On 24 March 2014 the Company lodged a prospectus to undertake a non-renounceable entitlement issue to 
eligible shareholders of up to approximately 160,521,671 fully paid ordinary shares (Shares) at an issue price of 
$0.035 per Share on the basis of 1 Share for every 3 Shares held on the record date of 2 April 2014 and 
160,521,671 options (Options) on the basis of 1 free attaching Option for every Share issued with each Option 
having an exercise price of $0.075 and expiring on 5 November 2015 to raise funds to undertake exploration 
programs over the Company’s 80% interest in the Kitgum – Pader precious and base metals project in Uganda, 
undertake exploration activities associated with the Company’s Thaduna copper project, to meet the expenses of 
the entitlement issue, and general working capital. 

Through the take-up of the entitlement issue and shortfall, 127,010,160 Shares and 127,010,160 Options were 
issued to raise total proceeds of $4,445,356.  In addition 7,000,000 Options were issued to Blue Ocean Equities 
Pty Limited for service related to the management of the shortfall under the Entitlement Issue. 

During the year ended 30 June 2013, Sipa made a placement of 26,423,334 fully paid ordinary shares at 7.5 
cents each and 13,211,669 Options each having an exercise price of 15 cents and expiry of 4 April 2015 to raise 
total proceeds of $1,981,750 to sophisticated investors, most of whom were existing shareholders of the 
Company.   

Ordinary shares 

Ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up of the company, 
to participate in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number and amounts paid up 
on shares held.  On a show of hands one vote for every registered shareholder and on a poll, one vote for each 
share held by a registered shareholder. 

Share Options 

Options Issued Year ended 30 June 2014 

Through the take-up of the entitlement issue and shortfall outlined in Note 13(a), 134,010,160 Options were 
issued with each Option having an exercise price of $0.075 and expiring on 5 November 2015.   

Options Issued Year ended 30 June 2013 

During the year ended 30 June 2013, Sipa made a placement of 26,423,334 fully paid ordinary shares at 7.5 
cents each and 13,211,669 Options each having an exercise price of 15 cents and expiry of 4 April 2015 to raise 
total proceeds of $1,981,750 to sophisticated investors, most of whom were existing shareholders of the 
Company.   

Dividends 

There were no dividends paid or proposed during the year ended 30 June 2014 (2013:  Nil).  The amount of 
franking credits available to the Company at 30 June 2014 is Nil  (2013:  Nil). 

(b)  Equity benefits reserve 

This reserve is used to record the value of equity benefits provided to employees and directors as part of their 
remuneration.  Refer to Note 14 for further detail of the plan. 
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(c)  Asset revaluation reserve 

This reserve records fair value changes on available-for-sale investments.   

Capital Management 

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, so as to maintain a strong capital base sufficient to maintain future exploration and development of its 
projects. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may return capital to shareholders, issue 
new shares or sell assets to increase cash. The Group’s focus has been to raise sufficient funds through equity to 
fund exploration and evaluation activities. The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio, however 
there are no external borrowings as at balance date. 

Management manages shareholder equity $3,740,066 (2013: $3,854,505) as capital.  There were no changes in 
the Group’s approach to capital management during the year. Risk management policies and procedures are 
established with regular monitoring and reporting. 

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 

14 SHARE BASED PAYMENT PLANS 

Sipa Resources Employee Share Option Plan/Employee Incentive Option Scheme 

Long term incentives are administered through the Sipa Resources Employee Share Option Plan.  The ESOP 
provides for free options to be issued to Participants, as determined by the directors in their absolute discretion 
based on various factors including length of service and the contribution that the participant will have to the long 
term performance of the Company.  In the event of an employee or key management personnel leaving the 
Company, the options held are forfeited, unless otherwise agreed by the Board.  The expenses recognised in the 
income statement in relation to share-based payments is disclosed in Note 3(c). 

(i) Options outstanding and movements in share options during the year 

2014 
Grant 
date 

Expiry 
date 

Exercise 
price 

Balance at 
start of 

year 

Issued 
during 
year 

Lapsed/ 
cancelled 

during year 

Balance at 
end of year 

Exercisable 
at end of 

year 

30/9/10 29/9/14 17.5 cents 7,250,000 - - 7,250,000 7,250,000 

25/11/10 24/11/14 21 cents 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 

11/11/11 10/11/13 20 cents 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - 

   10,250,000 - (1,000,000) 9,250,000 9,250,000 

2013 
Grant 
date 

Expiry 
date 

Exercise 
price 

Balance at 
start of 

year 

Issued 
during 
year 

Lapsed/ 
cancelled 

during year 

Balance at 
end of year 

Exercisable 
at end of 

year 

18/12/07 17/12/12 13.75 cents 1,500,000 - (1,500,000) - - 

30/9/10 29/9/14 17.5 cents 7,250,000 - - 7,250,000 7,250,000 

25/11/10 24/11/14 21 cents 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 

11/11/11 10/11/13 20 cents 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 

   11,750,000 - (1,500,000) 10,250,000 10,250,000 

(ii) Options exercised  

No options were exercised during the financial years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013. 

(iii) Weighted average remaining contractual life 

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 30 June 2014 is 0.30 
years (2013:  1.50 years). 

(iv) Service Conditions 

All service conditions have been met for outstanding options as at 30 June 2014.  
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15 EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity 
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of 
the Company adjusted for the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential 
ordinary shares into ordinary shares. 

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations: 

  Consolidated 

  2014 2013 
 Net loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company (4,474,545)  (5,775,853) 

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares before Entitlement Offer  493,884,352 461,230,467 
 Adjustment for dilutive effects of Entitlement Offer 65,913,553 63,130,290 
 Effect of dilution:   
  Share Options - - 

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for dilution 559,797,905 524,360,757 

 

The 156,468,496 options (2013: 23,461,670) are considered to be potential ordinary shares and have not been 
included in the determination of diluted earnings per share as they are anti- dilutive for the periods presented.  
Details relating to the options are set out in Notes 13 and 14. 

16 RECONCILIATION OF LOSS TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS 

 Net Loss (4,504,830) (5,717,678) 
 Depreciation of plant and equipment 61,282 60,662 
 Loss on disposal of fixed assets 313 - 
 Loss on write-down of available for sale financial assets - 4,000 
    
 Share of net loss of jointly controlled entity 1,033,741 569,736 

 Changes in assets and liabilities   
 Decrease in trade and other receivables 122,593 50,818 
 Decrease in prepayments 102,554 18,794 
 (Decrease)/increase in provisions (69,169) 46,831 
 Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 86,305 (274,892) 

 Net cash flow used in operating activities (3,167,211) (5,241,729) 

17 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE 

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Sipa Resources Limited and the 
subsidiaries listed in the following table: 

Name Country of  Equity Interest 

 Incorporation 2014 
% 

2013 
% 

Sipa Gold Limited  Australia 100 100 
Sipa Resources (1987) Limited Australia 100 100 
Sipa Exploration NL Australia 100 100 
Sipa Management Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 
Sipa – Gaia NL  Australia 100 100 
Ashling Resources NL Australia 100 100 
Topjest Pty Limited  Australia 100 100 
Sipa –Wysol Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 
Sipa East Africa Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 
SiGe East Africa Pty Ltd Australia 80 80 
Sipa Exploration Uganda Limited Uganda 80 80 
Sipa Resources Tanzania Limited Tanzania 80 80 

The wholly-owned group includes the ultimate parent entity in the wholly-owned group, Sipa Resources Limited and 
wholly owned controlled entities. 
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18 KEY MANAGAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES 

Directors 
Executives 

 

P I Pearce Chairman (non-executive) 
M Doepel Managing Director1 (executive) 
D Williams Director (non-executive) 
D Gooding Director (non-executive) 
K Field  Director (non-executive) 

L Daley 
   

Exploration Manager1 (5 June–24 
July 2014) 

T Robson
  

Company Secretary 
 

1 On 24 July 2014, Mr Doepel retired from the position of Managing Director and Ms Lynda Daley was appointed 
as Managing Director.  On that same date Mr Doepel was appointed a Non-Executive Director of the Company. On 
12 September 2014, Mr Doepel resigned from the position of Non-Executive Director. 
  

 Consolidated 
 

Compensation by Category:  Key management personnel 
2014 

       $ 
2013 

        $ 
Short-term employee benefits 535,389 567,855 
Post employment benefits 39,993 41,263 
Other long term benefits 6,162 5,527 

 581,544 614,645 

Other transactions with key management personnel 

Mr D J Williams, a director of the company, is a commercial counsel with the legal practice Williams and Hughes 
Pty Ltd which provides legal advice to the company. All transactions with Williams and Hughes are at competitive 
market rates and performed primarily by staff of Williams and Hughes Pty Ltd. The total services recognised as an 
expense for the year amounted to $5,998 (2013: $11,301). No amounts remained outstanding as at 30 June 2014. 

19 COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE 

(a) Operating Lease – Group as Lessee 

The Company has obligations under the terms of the lease of its office premises for a term of 5 years, plus a further 
5 year option, from and including 1st day of June 2006. The option was exercised in May 2011 and expires in May 
2016. Lease payments are payable in advance by 12 equal monthly instalments due on the 1st day of each month.  
Under the lease agreement the lessee provides for a rent review based on CPI each anniversary date.   

 Consolidated 

 
2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 

Due not later than one year 168,503 164,393 

Due later than one year and not later than five years 158,323 326,731 

 326,826 491,124 

(b) Exploration Expenditure Commitments 

The consolidated entity has minimum statutory commitments as conditions of tenure of certain mining tenements.  
In addition it has commitments to perform and expend funds towards retaining an interest in formalised agreements 
with partners.  If all existing areas of interest were maintained on the terms in place at 30 June 2014, the Directors 
estimate the minimum expenditure commitment for the ensuing twelve months to be $4,499,800 (2013: 
$1,550,500).  However the Directors consider that the actual commitment is likely to be less as these commitments 
are reduced continuously for such items as exemption applications to the Department of Industry and Resources, 
withdrawal from tenements, and other farm-out transactions.  In any event these expenditures do not represent 
genuine commitments as the ground can always be surrendered in lieu of payment of commitments.   This estimate 
may be varied as a result of the granting of applications for exemption. 
 

(c) Commitment to Controlled Entities 

The Company has advised its controlled entities that it will continue to provide funds to meet those entities’ 
working capital requirements for at least the next twelve months. 
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(d) Remuneration Commitments 
A remuneration commitment arises for Mr Doepel in the event of early termination of his employment contract 
other than for gross misconduct equal to the annual remuneration package.  Mr Doepel’s current annual 
remuneration package is $299,750.  The contract expired on 1 December 2013. On 24 July 2014, Mr Doepel retired 
from the position of Managing Director. On that same date Mr Doepel was appointed a Non-Executive Director of 
the Company, no amount was payable due to early termination during the current period. 

20 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ASSETS 

The consolidated entity has an interest in the following Jointly Controlled Asset’s: 
 
Arrangement Principal Activities Percentage Interest 
  2014 2013 
Mortlock River JV  Gold/Copper Exploration 49% 49% 
Panorama Copper/Zinc Exploration 0% 40% 
Woodline Comet Utopia JV Gold/Base Metal Exploration 0% 70% 
SiGe East Africa Pty Ltd (1) Base Metal Exploration 80% 80% 

All of the above joint operations are for the purposes of exploration activities and holding of tenement interests.  

(1) Refer note 21. 

21 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE 

During the previous financial year the Group obtained an 80% interest in the issued share capital of SIGE East 
Africa Pty Ltd, a company involved in exploration activities in Uganda, which it jointly controls. 

SIGE East Africa Pty Ltd is a private entity that is not listed on any public exchange. The following table illustrates 
the summarised financial information of the Group’s investment in SIGE East Africa Pty Ltd: 

Inception to date reconciliation: 

Net investment in SIGE East Africa Pty Ltd 1,744,232 

Share of losses (1,603,477) 

Foreign currency translation reserve                                                                    (27,890) 

Carrying value 112,865 

Movement in carrying value of investment: 

Investment as   at 1 July 2013 68,405 

Current period disbursements    1,047,916 

Share of current year losses (1,033,741) 

Foreign currency translation reserve                                                                             30,285 

Carrying value  at 30 June 2014 112,865 

 

The carrying value of the investment is represented by the Group’s share of the fair value of jointly controlled 
entity’s net recoverable assets. 
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An extract of the Joint Venture’s balance sheet at 30 June 2014 is presented below: 
 In AUD$ 

 
2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 

Cash and cash equivalents 54,463 85,507 

Other assets 12,450 2,205 

Property, Plant & Equipment 81,158 45,542 

Total Assets 148,071 133,254 

   

Payables (6,990) (11,387) 

   

Total Payables (6,990) (11,387) 

   

Net Assets 141,081 121,867 

(1)  The loan has no repayment terms and bears no interest. 

The joint venture has no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 30 June 2014.   

22 SEGMENT INFORMATION 

For management purposes, the Company is organised into one main operating segment, which involves mining 
exploration for gold and other minerals. All of the Company’s activities are interrelated, and discrete financial 
information is reported to the Board (Chief Operating Decision Makers) as a single segment. Accordingly, all 
significant operating decisions are based upon analysis of the Company as one segment. The financial results from 
this segment are equivalent to the financial statements of the Company as a whole.  

All of the Company’s revenues are derived in Australia and all of the Company’s non current assets are located in 
Australia.  Technical services revenue is derived from one customer. 

24  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

Overview 

This note presents information about the Company’s and Group’s exposure to credit, liquidity and market risks, 
their objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the management of capital. 

The Company and the Group does not use any form of derivatives as it is not at a level of exposure that requires the 
use of derivatives to hedge its exposure. Exposure limits are reviewed by management on a continuous basis. The 
group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative 
purposes. 

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management 
framework.  Management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the group through 
regular reviews of the risks. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and trade and 
other receivables.   

Cash and cash equivalents (including term deposits reserved for rehabilitation) 

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing in liquid securities and only with counterparties that 
have an acceptable credit rating.  Cash is held with recognised financial institutions with AA credit rating. 

Trade and other receivables 

As the Group operates primarily in exploration activities, its trade receivables are limited to receivables from joint 
arrangement parties.  The Group chooses to partner only with reputable partners and therefore reduces the exposure 
to credit risk in relation to trade receivables.   At the balance sheet date there were no significant concentrations of 
credit risk. 
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Other receivables consist primarily of GST refundable from the ATO and interest due on the Group’s term deposits.  
Given the acceptable credit ratings of both parties, management does not expect any either party to fail to meet its 
obligations.    

Exposure to credit risk 

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The Group’s 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was: 

  Consolidated 

  
2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 

Cash and cash equivalents  4,013,814 3,811,327 

Term deposits reserved for rehabilitation  162,368 200,368 

Trade and other receivables  80,191 202,784 

Other financial assets  44,245 44,245 

  4,300,618 4,258,724 

Impairment losses 

None of the Group’s other receivables are past due (2013: nil).   

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to 
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or 
risking damage to the Group’s reputation. 

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves from funds raised in the market and by 
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. The Group does not have any external borrowings. 

The Company does anticipate a need to raise additional capital in the next 12 months to meet forecast operational 
and exploration activities. The decision on how the Company will raise future capital will depend on market 
conditions existing at that time. 

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments 
(undiscounted) and excluding the impact of netting agreements: 

Consolidated 
30 June 2014 

Carrying 
amount 

Contractual 
cash flows 

6 mths or 
less 

Trade and other payables 395,505 395,505 395,505 

 395,505 395,505 395,505 

30 June 2013    

Trade and other payables 263,737 263,737 263,737 

 263,737 263,737 263,737 

Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices 
will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk 
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the 
return. 

Currency risk 

The Group and the Company is not exposed to significant currency risk as at balance sheet date the Group and the 
Company holds no financial assets or liabilities which are exposed to foreign currency risk. 

Interest rate risk 

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk (primarily on its cash and cash equivalents), which is the risk that a 
financial instrument’s value will fluctuate as a result of changes in the market interest rates on interest-bearing 
financial instruments. The Group does not use derivatives to mitigate these exposures.  

The Group adopts a policy of ensuring that as far as possible it maintains excess cash and cash equivalents in short 
term deposit at interest rates maturing over 90 day rolling periods.  
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Profile 

At the reporting date the Group had the following mix of financial assets held at Australian Fixed and Floating  
interest rates. There were no financial liabilities exposed to interest rate risk.   

  Consolidated 

  
2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 

Floating rate instruments    

Cash and cash equivalents  4,013,814 3,811,327 

  4,013,814 3,811,327 

    

Fixed rate instruments – No interest rate risk    

Term deposits reserved for rehabilitation  162,368 200,368 

  162,368 200,368 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments 

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 
Therefore a change in interest rates for financial instruments with short term maturity at the reporting date would 
not affect the carrying amount or profit or loss. 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

The Group’s exposure to variable rate instruments is in cash and cash equivalents.  A 100 basis point favourable and 
unfavourable change in interest rates will affect comprehensive income by $2,426 and $(2,426) (2013 $3,200 and 
$(3,200)) respectively. 

Fair values 

Fair values versus carrying amounts 

Due to their short term nature, the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities approximate fair value. 

Other Market Price Risk 

Other Equity price risk is the risk that the value of the instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market 
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an 
individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.  

Investments are managed on an individual basis and material buy and sell decisions are approved by the Board of 
Directors. The primary goal of the Group’s investment strategy is to maximise investment returns. 

The Group’s investments are solely in equity instruments. These instruments are classified as available-for-sale and 
carried at fair value with fair value changes recognised directly in equity, unless they are impaired, until 
derecognised. 

The following table details the breakdown of the investment assets and liabilities held by the Group: 

  Consolidated 
 
 

 
2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 

Shares in listed entities  8,000 8,000 

  8,000 8,000 

Sensitivity analysis 

The Group’s Available-For-Sale investments are listed on the Australian Stock Exchange. A 12.7% increase in 
stock prices at 30 June 2014 would have increased equity by $1,016 (2013: $906); an equal change in the opposite 
direction would have increased the net loss by the same amount.  12.7% is representative of the fluctuation of the 
ASX All Ordinaries Index for the period 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 (2013:11.36%)  

Commodity Price Risk 

The Group operates primarily in the exploration and evaluation phase and accordingly the Group’s financial assets 
and liabilities are subject to minimal commodity price risk. 
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 Consolidated 
25 AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 

The auditor of Sipa Resources Limited is Ernst & Young. 

Amounts received or due and receivable by Ernst & Young for:   

− an audit or review of the financial report of the entity and any other entity in 
the consolidated entity 53,560 55,455 

− other services in relation to the entity and any other entity in the 
consolidated entity 

- tax compliance  19,989 37,798 

 73,549 93,253 

There were no payments made or due to any other audit firms other than Ernst & Young for any audit or other 

accounting service. 

26 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

During the year ended 30 June 2013 the Panorama Exploration Project Joint Operation partners (Sipa 40% - CBH 
Resources Limited 60%) sold the Kangaroo Caves Mining Lease (ML45/587) to Venturex Resources Limited 
(Venturex), for the consideration of $2 per dry tonne of all ore mined and treated by Venturex. No contingent asset 
has been recognised as it is not probable at 30 June 2014 economic benefits will be received by the company. 

During the year ended 30 June 2011, Sipa sold its 100% interest in the Ashburton Gold Project to Northern Star 
Resources Limited.  Under the terms of the agreement, Northern Star will pay Sipa a 1.75% gross royalty on all 
gold production from the tenements, except the Merlin tenements, which will earn a 0.75% gross royalty on all gold 
production from the Merlin tenements. No contingent asset has been recognised as it is not probable at 30 June 2014 
economic benefits will be received by the company. 

27 INFORMATION RELATING TO SIPA RESOURCES LIMITED 

 
 

 
2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 

Current assets  3,411,216 3,311,506 

Total assets  3,419,227 3,319,517 

Current liabilities  - - 

Total liabilities  - - 

Retained earnings  (90,953,637) (86,693,242) 

Total equity  3,419,227 3,319,518 

Loss of the parent entity  4,260,395 6,250,358 

Total comprehensive loss of the parent entity  4,260,395 6,250,358 

Details of any guarantees entered into by the parent entity in relation to the 
debts of its subsidiaries 

 NIL NIL 

Details of any contingent liabilities of the parent entity  NIL NIL 

Details of any contractual commitments by the parent entity for the 
acquisition of property, plant or equipment 

 NIL NIL 

28 EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE 

There has not been any matter or circumstance, other than that referred to in the financial statements or notes 
thereto, that has arisen since the end of the financial year, that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect, 
the operations of the consolidated entity, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the consolidated 
entity in future financial years, except for as follows: 

 
On 24 July 2014, Mr Doepel retired from the position of Managing Director and Ms Lynda Daley was appointed as 
Managing Director.  On that same date Mr Doepel was appointed a Non-Executive Director of the Company. On 12 
September 2014, Mr Doepel resigned from the position of Non-Executive Director. 
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Directors' Declaration 
 
In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Sipa Resources Limited, I state that: 
 
In the opinion of the directors: 
 
(a) the financial statements and notes of the consolidated entity are in accordance with the Corporations Act 

2001, including: 
 

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2014 and of 
its performance for the year ended on that date; and 
 
(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting 
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001;  

 
(b) the financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as 

disclosed in note 2; and  
 
(c) subject to the matters described in note 2(c), there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company 

will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.    
 
(d) this declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in 

accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ending 30 June 2014 
 
 
On behalf of the Board 
 
 

 
_______________________ 
L M Daley 
Managing Director 
PERTH, WESTERN AUSTRALIA 
 
 
 
DATED   17 September 2014 
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Independent auditor's report to the members of SIPA Resources Limited 

Report on the financial report 

We have audited the accompanying financial report of SIPA Resources Limited, which comprises the 
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information, and the directors' declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the 
company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year. 

Directors' responsibility for the financial report 

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true 
and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for 
such internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial 
report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 2, the directors also 
state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the 
financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Auditor's responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with 
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Independence 

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 
2001.  We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor’s Independence Declaration, a 
copy of which is included in the directors’ report.  
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Opinion 

In our opinion: 

a. the financial report of SIPA Resources Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, 
including: 

i. giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June 
2014 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and 

ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; 
and 

b. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in 
Note 2. 

Emphasis of Matter 

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2(c) in the financial report which describes the 
principal conditions that raise doubt about the consolidated entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the 
consolidated entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, the consolidated entity may be 
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. 

Report on the remuneration report 

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 26 to 38 of the directors' report for the year 
ended 30 June 2014. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation 
of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of SIPA Resources Limited for the year ended 30 June 2014, 
complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. 

 
 
 

Ernst & Young 
 
 
 
 
G Lotter 
Partner 
Perth 
17 September 2014 
 
 


